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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The First Methodist Cnurch is a Milwaukee-cream-brick, late Gothic 
Revival church built farom 1869 to 1887 and designed by Milwaukee 
architect Edward Townsend Mix. The main facade faces south, and at 
the southeast corner of the building is a square tower and octagonal 
spire set at a 45° angle to the main axis of the building. The main 
entry to the building is on center in the south facade, and the sanctuary 
is one-half story above the entry. Thus, half-story windows at the 
ground level light a lower level, and full windows above illuminate 
the sanctuary.

Architecturally, the most interesting aspect of the building is the 
varied window openings. A row of lancet windows aeross^ne^ 'south 
facade and segmental-pointed arches over the side windows and lower- 
level south windows provide the bagic design, triangular dormer windows, 
five on the west side and four on the east, articulate the roof planes. — 
In the tower, there are three wheel windows with spiral tracery on 
the three exposed facades, and a similar window, larger and with an m 
oblong, pointed arch top, provides the central element of the south 
facade. The main doorway, within a lancet masonry opening, is framed 
within a wood four-centered arch supported by plain colonettes.

The exterior is original in appearance with the exception of a low, 
one-story mid-twentieth-century wing which has been added at the 
rear of the west side. Though of a conflicting architectural style, 
this wing does not seriously affect the building because of its 
diminutive scale. The interior of the sanctuary is original with 
plain white plastered walls, and wood pews, altar rail, speaker's 
podium, and choir stall.

The site upon which the church was built contains an ownership of 
1.28 acres. It occupies approximately 2/3 of a city block and is 
bounded on the south side by llth Street, on the east by 14th Avenue, 
on the west side by 13th Avenue, and on the north by the rear lot 
lines of private residential properties fronting on 10th Street. The 
church is sited approximately midway between 13th and 14th avenues, and 
set well back from llth Street. On the site is located one other build­ 
ing, a parsonage. It is a two-and-one-half story, brick-and-shingle 
Queen Anne house built in 1886. Architecturally, the parsonage is 
not a particularly outstanding example of the Queen Anne style, 
being rather plain and unelaborate for the period. Within the 
City of Monroe are to be found substantially superior examples of 
the style. A. V
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The First Methodist Church was designed by one of the maj^ ̂ ^nineteenth- 
century Wisconsin architects; Edward Townsend Mix C1831-lc%9) of Mil­ 
waukee. Mix was the architect for ^everal National Register buildings 
and nominations in Wisconsin, including Villa Louis at Prairie du Chien 
(National Historic Landmark), and Milwaukee's Mitchell Building, Mackie 
Building, All Saint's Cathedral, Immanuel Presbyterian Church, and St. 
Paul's Episcopal Church. Born in New Haven, Connecticut, he there met 
Richard Upjohn, for whom Mix worked for seven years before moving west. 
For one year he worked for William Boyington in Chicago, and then moved 
to Milwaukee where, in 1856, he established his own office. He worked 
in many major post-Civil War styles, including the late Gothic Revival, 
High Victorian Gothic, High Victorian Italianate, Second Empire, and 
Richardsonian Romanesque, Since the records of his office have been 
lost or destroyed, the extent of Mix's practice is unknown outside of 
Milwaukee. The last months of Mix's life were spent in Minneapolis, 
where he retired for his health before dying, apparently of tuberculosis, 
in 1890. For over thirty years Mix practiced architecture in Wisconsin 
and rose to the position of one of the most famous and significant of 
the state's nineteenth-century practitioners.

Monroe's First Methodist Churcfc, built over an eighteen-year period, is 
an excellent late Gothic Revival building and the city's most signifi­ 
cant religious structure. It is in the same generic vein as others of 
Mix's church oeuvres, bearing a striking resemblance to a mirror-image 
of his St. Luke's Church in Racine and Whitewater's Methodist Church, 
also probably by Mix. In Monroe, however, the church stands out as a 
unique local Mix design; a major architect's commission in a small, 
pastoral community. The primary area of significance,,therefore, is 
indicated as "architecture/1 '

Secondarily, the building is significant in the field of "religion/ 
philosophy" due to the antiquity of the congregation which erected the 
building. It was built by the first religious congregation in Green 
County on property deeded to the group in 1842. Founded in 1839 by 
the Reverend James Ash, Monree's early Methodist congregation built 
its first church building in 1843 on the site of the present parsonage. 
The present church was erected behind a former parsonage, since demolished, 
and the present parsonage was erected following the removal of the 
original church. Thus the site of the church is significant historically 
as the location of the county's first religious organization.___________
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